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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR CONSULTING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
STORAGE TANK INSPECTIONS 

 
ECWA Project No. 201900048 

General 

The Erie County Water Authority (Authority) will accept proposals for consulting engineering 
services for the inspection and evaluation of a number of water storage tanks. 

The Authority reserves the right to modify or cancel this Request for Proposals and/or the 
projects; to reject any or all proposals; and to waive any or all irregularities.  This Request for 
Proposals does not obligate the Authority to award a contract for any of the project or to 
reimburse any costs associated with the preparation of any proposal. 

The Request for Proposal (RFP) is being conducted pursuant to the New York State Finance Law 
§§139-j and 139-k and the Erie County Water Authority’s Procurement Disclosure Policy.  The 
Procurement Disclosure Policy is available by accessing the Erie County Water Authority’s web 
site – http://www.ecwa.org, under the caption “Doing Business with ECWA”. 

Project Description 

The project consists of engineering services for the inspection and evaluation of the following 
water storage tanks located throughout the Authority system.  The work is scheduled to be 
performed in 2019, 2020 and 2021. 

Name Scheduled Owner MG Type Construction 
Colvin 2019 fall ECWA 1.25  hydropillar steel 
Emery 2019 fall Lease Managed 0.44 ground concrete 
Gartman 2019 fall ECWA 0.5 ground steel 
Kulp 2019 fall Lease Managed 0.28 standpipe steel 
Newstead 2019 fall ECWA 1.5 hydropillar steel/concrete 
Aurora 2020 fall Lease Managed 0.28 ground concrete 
Broadway 2020 fall ECWA 4.4 ground steel 
East Aurora 2020 fall ECWA 2.0 ground steel 
Chestnut Ridge 2021 spring ECWA 1.5 ground steel 
Marilla 2021 spring ECWA 1.0 standpipe steel 
Scherff 2021 spring Lease Managed 0.25 standpipe steel 
Violet 2021 spring Lease Managed 0.30 ground steel 
Rice Hill 2021 fall Lease Managed 0.35 standpipe steel 
Sandridge 2021 fall Lease Managed 1.5 hydropillar steel 
Veterans Park 2021 fall ECWA 4.0 ground concrete 

http://www.ecwa.org/


P:\RFP\P201900048\RFP\RFP.docx Page 2 of 10 Rev.02/12/2019 

Scope of Work 

The scope of work is summarized below.  The method of payment shall be lump sum per the 
Authority standard form of Professional Services Contract, a copy of which is available upon 
request. 

1. Project Coordination: 
a. Conduct a kick-off meeting with the Authority prior to mobilizing for each round 

of tank inspections.  Engineer shall provide an agenda for the meeting. 
b. Review available as-built drawings and prior tank inspection reports for use as 

comparison and for determining inspection locations.  Discuss tank history with 
Authority staff prior to inspecting tank.  The historical information shall be 
reviewed prior to the kickoff meeting for each round of tank inspections. 

c. Coordinate inspection schedule with the Authority for each round of inspections.  
The Authority will remove from service and drain each tank as required to 
complete field assessment.  The Authority will open the manway and reinstall the 
gasket and bolts after the inspection.   Consultant shall be responsible for cleaning 
tank prior to inspection and then cleaning and disinfecting tank after the 
inspection. 

d. Perform inspections and evaluations for all tanks, but excluding any tanks deleted 
by the Authority.  It is anticipated that there will be four (4) mobilizations 
required to complete the inspections.  This work shall be completed by the Spring 
of 2021.   

e. Tank inspection reporting format and forms shall be approved by the Engineer 
prior to performing the inspections. 

2. Equipment Required for Inspection Services: 
a. Listed below are the minimum equipment requirements.  The list is not intended 

to be all inclusive: 
1) Portable generator and extension cords. 
2) Adequate lighting. 
3) 2-inch submersible pump. 
4) Pressure washer with hoses.  Authority will provide water source and power if 

available. 
5) Extension ladder – variable lengths shall be available for tank sizes listed 

above.   
6) Scaffolding – stationary or rolling.  If the use of an extension ladder is not 

feasible, scaffolding shall be used. 
7) Manlift - If the use of an extension ladder isn’t feasible. 
8) PPE. 
9) Climbing gear and rappelling equipment. 

3. Tank Inspections: General 
a. Tank inspections and evaluations shall be completed in accordance to API 653 

(latest edition), all applicable AWWA standards, OSHA standards and as 
specified herein.  The interior and exterior of each tank shall be inspected. 
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b. Tank inspection shall consist of a careful study of tank’s interior, exterior, and 
accessories.  Inspections shall include: structural conditions, safety conditions, 
sanitary conditions, coating system conditions, and security conditions.  All 
necessary surfaces on the tank shall be accessed by rigging and rappelling the 
interior and exterior as required by the condition and design of each tank. 
1) Structural investigations include, but are not limited to: 

a) Anchor bolts. 
b) Foundations. 
c) Riser/shell steel. 
d) Spider rods. 
e) Roof trusses. 
f) Weld seams. 

2) Safety investigations include, but are not limited to: 
a) All applicable regulations (OSHA, AWWA, FAA, etc.) 
b) Ladders. 
c) Fall prevention. 
d) Guardrails. 
e) Access manways. 
f) Confined space. 
g) Radiation. 

3) Sanitary investigations include, but are not limited to: 
a) Roof openings. 
b) Access hatches. 
c) Low spots on roofs. 
d) Vents. 
e) Overflows. 

4) Coating system investigations include, but are not limited to: 
a) Type and general condition. 
b) Approximate percentage and type of coatings system failure. 
c) Adhesion. 
d) Coating system thickness. 
e) Extent of pitting damage. 
f) Heavy metal presence. 

5) Security investigations include, but are not limited to: 
a) Physical deterrents: fences, locks, barricades, lighting, ladder guards, and 

vents. 
b) Telemetry: alarm systems and control systems. 

c. Entire tank floor and first shell ring (at a minimum) on steel tanks shall be cleaned 
using a high-pressure pump, as necessary, to remove any sediment, scaling, etc. to 
allow for a thorough inspection of the surfaces.  Entire tank floor and entire tank 
wall of concrete tanks shall be cleaned using a high-pressure pump, as necessary, 
to remove any sediment, scaling, etc. to allow for a thorough inspection of the 
surfaces.  The Authority will provide drums to place the sediment in that is 
removed from the bottom of the tank and will dispose of the material. 
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d. The tanks shall be inspected, from several standpoints, to provide an accurate 
evaluation of its condition and to identify sanitary, safety and/or structural 
deficiencies and to provide detailed recommendations for required remedial work. 

e. Assess condition of interior and exterior tank surfaces and evaluate effect of 
corrosion.  The evaluation shall include an analysis of the roof, floor, nozzles, 
vents and shell for the intended design conditions and determine the tank’s 
suitability for service, based on the existing roof, floor and shell plate thickness 
and material.  The analysis shall take into consideration all anticipated loading 
conditions, including pressure due to fluid static head, internal and external 
pressures, wind loads, seismic loads, roof live loads, nozzle loads, settlement, and 
attachment/accessories loads.  All assumptions used in the analysis shall be 
provided to the Authority in detail for review and approval. 

f. Personnel Requirements:  Inspections shall be performed by an inspection team 
consisting of a Team Leader (TL) and an Assistant Team Leader (ATL).  The use 
of additional ATL’s may be required based on the complexity and size of the tank 
being inspected.  All field personnel assigned to the project must be physically 
capable of performing the task associated with their positions.  All field personnel 
must be able to work at heights, on ladders, on scaffolding and on aerial lifts, or 
other tank inspection access equipment.  They must be able to climb, work in 
confined spaces, and be able to work under adverse weather conditions as 
required.  All field personnel shall satisfy OSHA requirements. 
1) The Team Leader shall have, at a minimum, the following certifications: 

a) API 653 – Mechanical Integrity  
b) NACE Level II/III – Coatings Inspection 

2) The Assistant Team Leader(s) shall have, at a minimum, one of the following 
certifications: 
a) NACE Level II/III – Coatings Inspection 
b) SNT-TC-1A – Nondestructive  
c) API 653 – Mechanical Integrity 
d) AWS CWI - Mechanical Integrity 
e) NICET Level III – General Construction 

All work performed by field personnel shall be reviewed by a New York State 
Licensed Professional Engineer (PE) with a minimum of five (5) experience with 
the design, construction, and maintenance of water storage tanks.  The PE is 
responsible for checking all field reports for completeness, accuracy and 
conformance with this document.  The PE must be present at a minimum of one 
tank inspection during each round of tank inspections to observe the inspection 
work being performed.   The PE shall verify that the TL and ATL(s) meet the 
requirements listed above.  

4. Tank Inspections:  Exterior. 
a. Exterior of tanks may be inspected while the tank is in service.  Coordinate with 

Owner to determine what equipment would not be accessible while the tank is in 
service. 

b. Inspect, record and evaluate the tank site and special considerations, such as, but 
not limited to security, site drainage, electrical service, and proximity to 
buildings. 
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c. Discuss repair history with Authority staff to determine if there have been any 
signs of leakage since the last inspection; especially in areas of seams, 
foundations, welds, and/or rivets. 

d. Inspect, record and evaluate concrete surfaces for spalling, cracking, exposed 
reinforcing wire, evidence of leakage, and other items requiring rehabilitation. 

e. Inspect, record and evaluate tank foundation for spalling, cracking, settling, etc.  
Note evidence of anchor bolt corrosion, distortion or loose/missing anchor bolt 
nuts. 

f. Inspect, record and evaluate tank roof and shell for distortion, bulging, blistering, 
leakage, pitting, corrosion of outside stiffeners and wind girders, cracking of 
attachment welds, etc. 

g. Inspect, record and evaluate tank ladders, fall protection systems, walkways, 
platforms, and/or stairways for corroded, bent, broken, or missing structural parts; 
loose or missing bolting; worn stair treads and/or rungs; safety latches are in place 
and are operational. 

h. Inspect, record and evaluate tank nozzles and penetrations for distortion, bulging, 
blistering, leakage, corrosion, and pitting.  

i. Inspect, record and evaluate tank grounding connections, as applicable, to ensure 
good electrical contact and condition of grounding bolts, bands, straps and rods. 

j. Inspect, record and evaluate the overall coating condition with description of 
chalking, peeling, coating faults, along with dry film thickness and overall coating 
adhesion conditions to the surface.   Determine the anticipated remaining useful 
life of the coating system(s). 

k. Summarize and describe the overall configuration and coatings history of the tank 
based on available record information and site observations. 

l. Obtain paint chip samples of the existing coating system(s) and analyze for lead, 
cadmium, and chromium content.  Repair coating as directed by ECWA. 

m. Inspect, record and evaluate all equipment, antennas, cables, mounting brackets, 
penetrations, etc. of the various cellular phone companies.  Consultant must be 
cognizant about working in close proximity to cellular antennas and other 
communication antennas. 

5. Tank Inspections:  Interior. 
a. Upon tank draining, inspect and record evidence of excessive sedimentation prior 

to removal. 
b. Interior and exterior tank surfaces and tank internal parts shall be cleaned, as 

needed, prior to the inspection.  All scale, etc. shall be removed so that a thorough 
inspection may be conducted, and satisfactory operation can be achieved.  All 
floor welds and the bottom 4-feet of all shell welds shall be cleaned.   

c. Baffles and attachments shall be inspected for deterioration, damage, and/or 
proper installation. 

d. Inspect, record and evaluate tank nozzles and penetrations for distortion, bulging, 
blistering, leakage, corrosion, and pitting.  

e. Inspect, record and evaluate tank roof for mechanical integrity and leaks.   
f. Obtain ultrasonic thickness measurements, for steel tanks, as follows at a 

minimum: 
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1) A minimum of four (4) shell plate thickness reading shall be obtained at each 
shell plate. 

2) Thickness readings shall be made about the internal circumference of each 
accessible nozzle.  Nozzles having too small an internal diameter to permit 
access shall be tested from the outside of the tank. 

3) A band of ultrasonic thickness measurements shall be taken around the tank 
circumference, 2-inches above the bottom to shell weld, spacing the 
measurements four (4) per shell plate, at a minimum.  Note additional 
measurements shall be obtained in all areas of apparent corrosion, or as the 
Inspector determines necessary to determine tank’s overall suitability for 
service. 

4) A band of ultrasonic thickness readings shall be taken around the tank 
circumference, 3-feet above the bottom to shell weld, spacing the readings 
two (2) per shell plate.  Note additional measurements shall be obtained in all 
areas of apparent corrosion, or as the Inspector determines necessary to 
determine tank’s overall suitability for service. 

5) Tank regions, including regions of the bottom, shell, roof or nozzles, that 
exhibit visually detectable metal loss shall require multiple ultrasonic 
thickness measurements to determine the thinnest area within the region and 
to define the dimensions of the affected region.  Localized thinning shall be 
evaluated per API 653. 

6) A representative number of areas on the floor shall be scanned (ultrasonic) to 
determine if soil side corrosion is occurring. 

7) Tank ultrasonic thickness measurements shall also be recorded and located on 
a drawing(s) of the tank.  For badly pitted areas, pit gauges shall be used to 
determine the depths of the deepest pits within each steel wall and floor plate.  
Location of pit filler shall be identified and located on drawing of the tank.  
Localized and random pitting shall be evaluated per API 653.  ECWA will 
provide all existing tank drawings, as required. 

g. Inspect, record, and evaluate all tank roof components, including roof supports, 
roof trusses, vents and rafters, for mechanical integrity, corrosion, leaks, evidence 
of buckling, distortion, and/or deterioration.  Thickness measurements of 
apparently badly corroded areas shall be obtained using ultrasonic thickness 
equipment.  A minimum of four (4) measurements per roof plate (exterior side) 
shall be obtained.  Additional measurements shall be obtained to the extent 
necessary to determine tank’s overall suitability for service.  

h. Inspect, record and evaluate all tracks, rollers, ladders, rolling ladders for 
mechanical integrity, corrosion/deterioration, leaks, evidence of buckling, 
distortion, and/or deterioration.  Internal ladders or “painters ring” shall not be 
used for inspection purposes. 

i. Perform settlement survey per API 653. 
j. Inspect, record and evaluate all concrete surfaces for spalling, cracking, exposed 

reinforcing wire, evidence of leakage, wall/floor seam condition, and other items 
requiring rehabilitation.  

k. Inspect, record and evaluate the overall coating condition with description of 
chalking, peeling, coating faults, along with dry film thickness and overall coating 



P:\RFP\P201900048\RFP\RFP.docx Page 7 of 10 Rev.02/12/2019 

adhesion conditions to the surface.   Determine the anticipated remaining useful 
life of the coating system(s). 

l. Summarize and describe the overall configuration and coatings history of the tank 
based on available record information and site observations. 

m. Obtain samples of the existing coating system(s) and analyze for lead, cadmium, 
and chromium content. 

n. Obtain measurements and identify components, configuration, and condition of 
the tank overflow system.   A hands-on inspection of the tank overflow system is 
required.  

o. After the interior inspection is complete, disinfect the tank according to AWWA 
Standard C652-02 Method 2.  The Authority will be responsible for filling each 
tank, collecting bacteriological samples, and having the samples analyzed. 

6. Records, Documentation and Report Format 
a. Provide a drawing(s) of each tank which accurately illustrates the identifying 

points which have been marked on the tank.  Inspection findings shall be reported 
relative to their location in/on the tank, with sufficient detail to permit relocation 
and evaluation of the reported condition(s).  Provide additional notes, sketches, or 
documents appended to the report, as necessary, to more fully describe the 
inspection findings.  

b. Provide photographic record of observations to adequately portray the overall 
findings of the inspection of each tank. 

c. Provide recommendations, as necessary, for repairs and modifications to bring 
each tank inspected into compliance with present AWWA, OSHA, NYSDOH, 
DHS, FAA and sanitary standards and regulations. 

d. Identify and prioritize the need for structural, site, and coating repairs.  If 
applicable, offer alternatives that may extend the tank’s useful life prior to the 
need for major rehabilitation. 

e. Identify items to be detailed in the preparation of contract documents for repairs 
and rehabilitation and provide recommendations and alternatives for repair 
methods and techniques.  Provide details of the advantages and disadvantages of 
each alternative given. 

f. Evaluate impact of coatings containing lead, cadmium, or chromium, if found, on 
repair procedures. 

g. Prepare present worth cost analyses for the recommended repairs, modifications, 
and painting options.  Provide the replacement cost of the tank for cost 
comparison. 

h. Provide three copies and one (1) electronic copy of the Draft Engineering Report 
for each tank for review and comment by the Authority, including the 
observations and recommendations for rehabilitation and maintenance as well as 
budget cost estimates. 

i. Provide three copies and one (1) electronic copy of the Final Engineering Report 
for each tank that addresses the Authority’s comments from the draft reports. 
Reports shall be certified by a New York State Licensed Professional Engineer 
(PE) familiar with the design, construction, and maintenance of water storage 
tanks.  See paragraph 3f for personnel requirements. 
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7. Special Services 
The Authority may require the Consultant to provide or arrange for and assist in 
obtaining one or more of the following special services in carrying out the project.  
Because it is not possible to determine in advance the need for or the cost of such 
services, these are included as separate elements of cost which shall be separately 
negotiated.  These services include: 
a. Additional copies of reports. 
b. Extra travel and subsistence for the Consultant and his staff beyond that normally 

required under ordinary circumstances, when authorized by the Authority. 
c. TCLP testing of tank sediment. 
d. Disposal of tank sediment characterized as hazardous. 
e. Underwater evaluations by a Certified Commercial Diver. 
f. Vacuum truck removal of sediment. 
g. Remotely operated vehicle (ROV) inspection services. 
h. Magnetic flux leakage detection, magnetic particle testing, penetrant testing, 

radiographic testing, and vacuum box testing. 
i. Certified welding inspection services. 
j. Ground penetrating radar. 
k. Thawing/deicing equipment. 
l. Potable water tank. 
m. 2" – 6" centrifugal or submersible pump rental. 
n. Inspection and evaluation of additional water storage tanks. 

Information Requests 

All questions and requests for information are to be directed to the designated ECWA Contact 
Person, Mr. Leonard F. Kowalski, PE, Senior Distribution Engineer 716-685-8220, in 
accordance with New York State Finance Law §§139-j and 139-k. 

Proposal Requirements 

Proposals are to be concise, specific, and straightforward.  All pertinent information is to be 
contained in the proposal.  The use of artwork, special covers, and extraneous information in the 
proposals is discouraged.  Proposals are to remain valid for a minimum of 60 days.  Each 
proposal shall include the following: 
 

Item 1 - Qualifications and related experience, particularly on the type of projects 
outlined above. 

 
Item 2 - Project understanding, technical approach and detailed scope of services.  

Identify any suggested revisions to the scope of work as outlined herein. 
 

Item 3 - Project staffing for all key personnel and subcontractors; current workload; 
and office location(s) where work will be performed for each project. 

 
Item 4 - Qualifications of engineer(s) and inspector(s) including applicable education, 

training, experience and certification. 



P:\RFP\P201900048\RFP\RFP.docx Page 9 of 10 Rev.02/12/2019 

 
Item 5 - Work performed for the Water Authority in 2016, 2017, and 2018. 

 
Item 6 - Current remaining workload with the Water Authority. 

Item 7 - Completed attachment titled Section 139 of State Finance Law per attached. 

Item 8 - Proof of insurance in accordance with the attached Erie County Water 
Authority Insurance Requirements for Professional Services per attached.  

 
Item 9 - Fee proposal which is to include a breakdown of engineering fees showing 

personnel, hours, hourly rates, overhead rates, and subcontractor costs for 
each phase per the scope of work.  Nonprofessional services are subject to 
New York State prevailing wage rates including but not limited to cleaning, 
rigging and waste disposal. 

Proposals shall include the following form for comparison purposes: 

Storage Tank Inspections 
ECWA Project No. 201900048 

Colvin $   
Emery $   
Gartman $   
Kulp $   
Newstead $   
Aurora $   
Broadway $   
East Aurora $   
Chestnut Ridge $   
Marilla $   
Scherff $   
Violet $   
Rice Hill $   
Sandridge $   
Veterans Park $   
Special Services $ 15,000.00  

TOTAL: $   
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Storage Tank Inspections 
ECWA Project No. 201900048 

2019 HOURLY RATES 
Team Leader $   
Assistant Team Leader $   
Licensed Professional Engineer $   

2020 HOURLY RATES 
Team Leader $   
Assistant Team Leader $   
Licensed Professional Engineer $   

2021 HOURLY RATES 
Team Leader $   
Assistant Team Leader $   
Licensed Professional Engineer $   

 

Proposals will be accepted until 4:00 p.m. on February ___, 2019.  Five copies of each 
proposal shall be delivered to Erie County Water Authority, 3030 Union Road, Buffalo, New 
York 14227 to the attention of Mr. Russell J. Stoll, PE, Executive Engineer.  Proposals received 
after this time will not be considered and will be returned unopened.  All proposals being mailed 
(including Federal Express, UPS, Priority Mail, etc.) or hand delivered shall be directed to the 
attention of Mr. Stoll in a sealed envelope and be clearly marked on the outside of the mailing or 
hand delivered envelope as follows: “PROPOSAL – ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
STORAGE TANK INSPECTIONS” 

Evaluation and Selection 

All proposals will be evaluated by a small in-house committee made up of Water Authority 
personnel familiar with the proposed project.  Interviews and/or presentations of the proposals 
will be requested if needed.  The proposals will be evaluated based on the criteria listed above. 

The final scope of work and fee for the engineering services for the project will be negotiated 
with the selected firm. Professional Service Contracts will then be executed pending successful 
negotiation and authorization by the Water Authority Board of Commissioners.  All firms 
submitting proposals will be notified of the selection results.  It is anticipated that the selection 
process will be completed in March 2019, and that the agreement will be executed in April 2019. 
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FORMS A, B, and C 

STATE FINANCE LAW REQUIREMENTS 

The Erie County Water Authority (the “Authority”) is a government entity, as that term is 
defined in State Finance Law §§ 139-j(1)(a) and 139-k(1)(a). When the Authority seeks to 
procure goods or services by means of an Invitation or Notice to Bid, or a Request for Proposals, 
the State Finance Law imposes certain restrictions on anyone who may wish to offer goods or 
services to the Authority as an Offerer, as that term is defined in §§ 139-j(1)(h) and 139-k(1)(h).  

During the Restricted Period, as defined in §§ 139-j(1)(f) and 139-k(1)(f), when bids or 
proposals are being solicited, the Authority will designate a contact person with whom the 
Offerer may contact for information and other authorized purposes as set forth in §139-j of the 
State Finance Law.  The designated contact is identified in the Notice to Bidders, or in the 
Request for Proposal.  An Offerer is authorized to contact the Authority’s designated contact for 
such purposes as set forth in § 139-j(3).  

Pursuant to the State Finance Law, the Authority is also required to make certain findings before 
making any determinations as to the qualifications and eligibility of those seeking a procurement 
contract, as that term is defined in State Finance Law §§ 139-j(1)(g) and 139-k(1)(g). Certain 
findings of non-responsibility can result in rejection for contract award and in the event of two 
findings of non-responsibility occurring within a 4-year period, the Offerer will be debarred from 
obtaining procurement contracts with the Authority.  Further information about these 
requirements can be found in §§139−j and 139−k of the New York State Finance Law and the 
Erie County Water Authority’s Procurement Disclosure Policy. 

The following forms will be used by the Authority to make such findings: 

Form A - Offerer’s Affirmation of Understanding of, and Agreement to Comply with, the 
Authority’s Permissible Contact Requirement During the Restricted Period.  

Form B - Offerer’s Certification of Compliance with State Finance Law. 

Form C - Offerer’s Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations. 
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FORM A 
 

Offerer’s Affirmation of Understanding of, and Agreement to Comply  
with, the Permissible Contact Requirements During the Restricted Period 

Instructions: 

The Erie County Water Authority (the “Authority”) is a government entity, as that term is 
defined in State Finance Law §§ 139-j(1)(a) and 139-k(1)(a).  The Authority must obtain a 
written affirmation of understanding and agreement to comply with procedures regarding 
permissible contacts with the Authority in the restricted period for a procurement contract in 
accordance with State Finance Law §139−j and §139−k.  It is required that this affirmation be 
obtained as early as possible in the procurement process, but no later than when the Offerer 
submits its proposal. 

 
Offerer affirms that it understands and agrees to comply with the procedures of the Authority 
relative to permissible contacts as required by State Finance Law §139−j(3) and §139−j(6)(b). 

By:   Date:   

Name:   

Title:   

Contractor Name:   

Contractor Address:   
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FORM B 

Offerer’s Certification of Compliance 
With State Finance Law §139−k(5) 

Instructions: 

The Erie County Water Authority (the “Authority”) is a government entity, as that term is 
defined in State Finance Law §§ 139-j(1)(a) and 139-k(1)(a).  The Authority must obtain a 
Certification that the information submitted for a procurement contract is complete, true, and 
accurate regarding any prior findings of non-responsibility, such as non-responsibility pursuant 
to State Finance Law §139−j.  The Offerer must agree to sign the Certification, under penalty of 
perjury, and to provide the Certification to the Authority.  The Certification should be obtained 
as early as possible in the process, but no later than when an Offerer submits its proposal. 

Offerer Certification: 

I certify that all information provided to the Authority relating to the awarding of a procurement 
contract is complete, true, and accurate. 

By:   Date:   

Name:   

Title:   

Contractor Name:   

Contractor Address:   
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Page 1 of 3 
FORM C 

Offerer’s Disclosure of Prior 
Non-Responsibility Determinations 

Background: 

The Erie County Water Authority (the “Authority”) is a government entity, as that term is 
defined in State Finance Law §§ 139-j(1)(a) and 139-k(1)(a). New York State Finance Law 
§139−k(2) obligates the Authority to obtain specific information regarding prior non-
responsibility determinations with respect to State Finance Law §139−j.  In accordance with 
State Finance Law §139−k, an Offerer must be asked to disclose whether there has been a 
finding of non-responsibility made within the previous four (4) years by any Governmental 
Entity due to: (a) a violation of State Finance Law §139−j; or (b) the intentional provision of 
false or incomplete information to a Government Entity. 

The terms “Offerer” and “Governmental Entity” are defined in State Finance Law §§139−j(1).  
and §139−k(1),  These sections also set forth detailed requirements about the restrictions on 
contacts during the procurement process.   A violation of State Finance Law §139−j includes, but 
is not limited to, an impermissible contact during the restricted period (for example, contacting a 
person or entity other than the designated contact person, when such contact does not fall within 
one of the exemptions). 

As part of its responsibility determination, State Finance Law §139−k(3) mandates consideration 
of whether an Offerer fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information regarding the 
above non-responsibility determination.  In accordance with law, no Procurement Contract shall 
be awarded to any Offerer that fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information under 
this section, unless a finding is made that the award of the Procurement Contract to the Offerer is 
necessary to protect public property or public health safety, and the Offerer is the only source 
capable of supplying the required Article of Procurement, as that term is defined in State Finance 
Law §§ 139-j(1)(b) and 139-k(1)(b), within the necessary timeframe.  See State Finance Law 
§139−j(10)(b) and §139−k(3). 

Instructions: 

The Authority must include a disclosure request regarding prior non-responsibility 
determinations in accordance with State Finance Law §139−k in its solicitation of proposals or 
bid documents or specifications or contract documents, as applicable, for procurement contracts.  
The attached form is to be completed and submitted by the individual or entity seeking to enter 
into a Procurement Contract.  It shall be submitted to the Authority conducting the Governmental 
Procurement no later than when the Offerer submits its proposal. 
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Page 2 of 3 
FORM C (Continued) 

Offerer’s Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations 

Name of Individual or Entity Seeking to Enter into the Procurement Contract: 

  

Address:   

  

Name and Title of Person Submitting this Form:   

  

Contract Procurement Number:   

Date:   

1. Has any Governmental Entity made a finding of non-responsibility regarding the individual 
or entity seeking to enter into the Procurement Contract in the previous four years?  (Please 
circle): No Yes 

 If yes, please answer the next questions: 

2. Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to a violation of State Finance Law 
§139−j (Please circle):  No Yes 

3. Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to the intentional provision of false or 
incomplete information to a Governmental Entity?  (Please circle) No Yes 

4. If you answered yes to any of the above questions, please provide details regarding the 
finding of non-responsibility below. 

Governmental Entity:   

Date of Finding of Non-Responsibility:   

Basis of Finding of Non-Responsibility:   
  
  
  
  
  
(Add additional pages as necessary) 
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Page 3 of 3 
FORM C (Continued) 

5. Has any Governmental Entity or other governmental agency terminated or withheld a 
Procurement Contract with the above-named individual or entity due to the intentional 
provision of false or incomplete information?  (Please circle): No Yes 

6. If yes, please provide details below. 
 Governmental Entity:   

 Date of Termination or Withholding of Contract:   

 Basis of Termination or Withholding: 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 (Add additional pages as necessary) 

Offerer certifies that all information provided to the Erie County Water Authority with respect to 
State Finance Law §139−k is complete, true, and accurate. 

By:   Date:   
 Signature 

Name:   

Title:   
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CONTRACT TERMINATION PROVISION 

Instructions: 

A Contract Termination Provision will be included in each procurement contract governed by 
State Finance Law §139−k.  New York State Finance Law §139-k(5) provides that every 
procurement contract award subject to the provisions of State Finance Law §§139−k and 139−j 
shall contain a provision authorizing the governmental entity to terminate the contract in the 
event that the certification is found to be intentionally false or intentionally incomplete.  This 
statutory contract language authorizes, but does not mandate, termination.  “Government Entity” 
and “procurement contract” are defined in State Finance Law §§ 139 j(1) and 139−k(l). 

This required clause will be included in a covered procurement contract. 

A sample of the Termination Provision is included below.  If a contract is terminated in 
accordance with State Finance Law §139−k(5), the Erie County Water Authority, as a 
governmental entity, is required to include a statement in the procurement record describing the 
basis for any action taken under the termination provision. 

Sample Contract Termination Provision 

The Erie County Water Authority, as a governmental entity, reserves the right to terminate this 
contract in the event it is found that the certification filed by the Offerer in accordance with New 
York State Finance Law §139−k was intentionally false or intentionally incomplete.  Upon such 
finding, the Authority may exercise its termination right by providing written notification to the 
Offerer in accordance with the written notification terms of this contract. 
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SECTION 139-L OF THE STATE FINANCE LAW 
STATEMENT RELATING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

1. “Bidder” has the same meaning as the term, “Offerer,” as that terms is defined in State 
Finance Law § 139-k(1)(h), and includes anyone who submits a bid or proposal. 
  

2. Every proposal or bid hereafter made and submitted to the Erie County Water Authority, 
where competitive bidding or a sealed proposal is required by statute, rule or regulation, 
for work or services performed or to be performed or goods sold or to be sold, shall 
contain the following statement subscribed by the Bidder and affirmed by such Bidder as 
true under penalty of perjury: 
 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT BIDDING CERTIFICATION 
 
(a) “By submission of this bid/proposal, EACH BIDDER AND EACH PERSON 

SIGNING ON BEHALF OF ANY BIDDER CERTIFIES, AND IN THE CASE OF 
A JOINT BID EACH PARTY THERETO CERTIFIES AS TO ITS OWN 
ORGANIZATION, under penalty of perjury, that the Bidder has and has 
implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the 
workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all its 
employees. Such policy shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements of Section two 
hundred one-g of the Labor Law.” 

 
3.  A bid/proposal shall not be considered for award nor shall any award be made to a 

Bidder who has not complied with subdivision one of this section; provided, however, 
that if in any case the Bidder cannot make the foregoing certification, the Bidder shall so 
state and shall furnish with the bid/proposal a signed statement which sets forth in detail 
the reasons therefore.   

The undersigned CERTIFIES, under penalty of perjury, that he is authorized to make this 
bid/proposal and execute this statement on sexual harassment; that he is familiar with the 
statements contained in ¶2(a) of this document, as well as the provisions of State Finance Law 
§139-L and Labor Law §201-g, and such statements are true and have been complied with by the 
Bidder. 

                                                      
       (Name of Individual, Partnership or Corporation) 
    

    By          
     (Person authorized to sign) 
 (SEAL) 

END OF BID FORM SUPPLEMENTS 
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INS2013-PS 
Revision date: 03/01/2013 

 
Erie County Water Authority Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 

 
Project Number: 201900048 
 
Description: Request for Proposals for engineering services for the inspection 

and evaluation of water storage tanks. 
 
The following minimum insurance requirements shall apply to professional service 
providers under agreement with the Erie County Water Authority (ECWA).  The 
professional service provider carries relevant insurance for the services covered. If at 
anytime, in the opinion of ECWA, there is an unusual or exceptional risk, ECWA may 
establish additional insurance requirements for the duration of the agreement. All insurance 
required herein shall be obtained at the sole cost and expense of the professional service 
provider, including deductibles and self-insured retentions. These requirements include but 
are not limited to the minimum insurance requirements. 
 
 
An X indicates insurance coverage is required.  
 
 X  Commercial General Liability Insurance: (including, but not limited to, Bodily 

(Personal) Injury, Premises Operations, Property Damage Liability (broad form), 
Contractual Liability, Advertising Injury, Independent Contractors, Product 
Liability, Completed Operations Liability and Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground Coverage) – in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limit and $2,000,000 in the aggregate: 

 
  X   Per Policy 

 
        Per Project or Job  

 
        Per Location 

 
There should be no exclusions for any claims filed, actual or alleged, for violation 
of any applicable statute including, but not limited to, the New York State or federal 
labor laws, ordinances, administrative orders, executive orders, rules, regulations, 
or decrees of any court of competent jurisdiction.   

 
   X    Commercial Business Automobile Insurance in an amount of not less than 

$1,000,000 each accident and shall cover liability arising out of any automobile 
owned, leased, hired, borrowed and non-owned automobiles. Additionally, if 
vehicles are used for transporting hazardous materials, the contractor shall obtain 
and maintain the “broadened” coverage (endorsement CA 99 48 10 01 or CA 99 48 
12 93), as well as proof of MCS 90 04 00.  
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  X    Excess Umbrella Liability Insurance:  
 

        $1,000,000 in the aggregate  
 
        $2,000,000 in the aggregate 
 
        $3,000,000 in the aggregate 

 
        $4,000,000 in the aggregate 
 
  X    $5,000,000 in the aggregate 

 
  X   Per Policy 

 
        Per Project or Job  

 
        Per Location 

 
 
  X    Professional Liability Insurance: Per each occurrence and in the aggregate. 

Continuous coverage shall be maintained, or on an extended discovery period (“tail 
coverage”), for a period of not less than two years from the time the agreement has 
been completed in an amount of not less than: 

 
        $1,000,000 in the aggregate 
 
        $2,000,000 in the aggregate 
 
        $3,000,000 in the aggregate 

 
        $4,000,000 in the aggregate 
 
  X   $5,000,000 in the aggregate 

 
  X   Per Policy 

 
        Per Project or Job  

 
        Per Location 
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The insurer's full legal company name(s).  Use the actual name of the company within the group to which the policy has been issued.  
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The name of the individual at the producer's establishment that is the primary contact.
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Sticky Note
The named insured(s) as it/they will appear on the policy declarations page.
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Sticky Note
As used here, the limit should be listed as a whole dollar amount, as found on the policy declarations page.
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The identifier assigned by the insurer to the policy, or submission, being referenced exactly as it appears on the policy, including prefix and suffix symbols
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Enter Y for a “Yes” response. Input N for “No” response. Indicates subrogation has been waived on the policy.
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Enter Y for a “Yes” response. Input N for “No” response. Indicates if the certificate holder has been named as an additional insured on the policy
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Understanding New York Workers Compensation Board 
Workers Compensation and N.Y.S Disability Benefits Liability 

NOTE: ACORD Certificates of Insurance are not acceptable proof. Must use one of the forms 
noted above: 

 

 
This is a brief description for governmental organizations to validate vendor workers compensation and 

NYS Disability Benefits coverage. These requirements should be used when applying for permits, licenses 
or secure contracts. Copies should be obtained not only at the initial issuance but at renewal as well. A full 

instruction manual can be obtained from the Workers Comp Board. 
 
The forms discussed are: 
 
1) Form CE-200- Affidavit of Exemption  (obtain at: www.wcb.state.ny.us/content/ebiz/wc_db_exemptions/requestExemptionOverview.jsp) 

 Acceptable proof that the business listed is exempt from providing workers’ compensation 
and/or disability insurance coverage. 

 
2) Workers Compensation 
 

• Form C-105.2: Certificate of Workers Compensation (WC) (Obtain from your insurance agent) 
 All private NYS licensed workers’ compensation carriers are required to issue the C-105.2. 

 
• Form SI- 12: Certificate of WC when self-insured. (Obtain from workers compensation board) 

 Only the Self-Insurance Office of the Workers’ Compensation Board issues the SI-12. The 
Self-Insurance Office can be contacted at 518-402-0247.  Only one legal name and Federal 
Employer Identification Number can be listed on each Form SI-12. (Multiple legal entities 
must not be listed.)  

 
• Form GSI- 105.2: Certificate of WC when participating in a group self-insured program. 

 The self-insurance administrator of the group completes the form. 
 

• Form U-26.3: Certificate of WC  
 Acceptable proof that the business has workers’ compensation coverage through the New 

York State Insurance Fund. Only available through (NYSIF).  
 
3) New York State Disability Benefits Law (DBL) 
 

• Form DB-120.1: Certificate of DBL Insurance (obtain from workers compensation board) 
 The DB-120.1 must be completed by either the NYS statutory disability benefits insurance 

carrier, or a licensed NYS insurance agent of that carrier. The form can be obtained by 
contacting the Bureau of Compliance. (certificates@wcb.state.ny.us) 

 
• Form DB-155: Certificate of DBL Self-Insurance 

 The Self-Insurance Office of the Workers’ Compensation Board issues the DB-155. The 
Board’s secretary will approve the DB-155. The Self-Insurance Office can be contacted at 
518-402-0247. 

 
4) Exemption 1, 2, 3, or 4 Family, Owner Occupied residence (http://www.wcb.state.ny.us/content/main/forms/bp-1.pdf) 
 

http://www.wcb.state.ny.us/content/main/Employers/ProveItToMoveIt5-2010.pdf
http://www.wcb.state.ny.us/content/ebiz/wc_db_exemptions/requestExemptionOverview.jsp
mailto:formsdepartment@wcb.state.ny.us
mailto:certificates@wcb.state.ny.us
http://www.wcb.state.ny.us/content/main/forms/Forms_db_carrier_self_insurer.jsp


C-105.2 (9-15) www.wcb.ny.gov W31F3J15

CERTIFICATE OF 
NYS WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE

1a. Legal Name & Address of Insured (use street address 
only)
      
      
      

1b. Business Telephone Number of Insured
      

1c. NYS Unemployment Insurance Employer Registration 
Number of Insured
      

Work Location of Insured (Only required if coverage is specifically 
limited to certain locations in New York State, i.e., a Wrap-Up Policy)
      

1d. Federal Employer Identification Number of Insured or Social 
Security Number
      

2. Name and Address of the Entity Requesting Proof of 
Coverage (Entity Being Listed as the Certificate Holder)
      
      
      
      
     

3a. Name of Insurance Carrier

3b. Policy Number of entity listed in box "1a"

3c. Policy effective period

to
3d. The Proprietor, Partners or Executive Officers are

included. (Only check box if all partners/officers included)

all excluded or certain partners/officers excluded.

This certifies that the insurance carrier indicated above in box "3" insures the business referenced above in box "1a" 
for workers' compensation under the New York State Workers' Compensation Law. (To use this form, New York 
(NY) must be listed under Item 3A on the INFORMATION PAGE of the workers' compensation insurance 
policy). The Insurance Carrier or its licensed agent will send this Certificate of Insurance to the entity listed above as 
the certificate holder in box "2". 

Will the carrier notify the certificate holder within 10 days of a policy being cancelled for non-payment of premium 
or within 30 days if cancelled for any other reason or if the insured is otherwise eliminated from the coverage 
indicated on this certificate prior to the end of the policy effective period? YES NO

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This 
certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policy listed, nor does it confer any rights or 
responsibilities beyond those contained in the referenced policy.
This certificate may be used as evidence of a Workers' Compensation contract of insurance only while the 
underlying policy is in effect.
Please Note: Upon cancellation of the workers' compensation policy indicated on this form, if the business 
continues to be named on a permit, license or contract issued by a certificate holder, the business must 
provide that certificate holder with a new Certificate of Workers' Compensation Coverage or other 
authorized proof that the business is complying with the mandatory coverage requirements of the New York 
State Workers' Compensation Law.
Under penalty of perjury, I certify that I am an authorized representative or licensed agent of the insurance 
carrier referenced above and that the named insured has the coverage as depicted on this form.

Approved by:
(Print name of authorized representative or licensed agent of insurance carrier)

Approved by:
(Signature) (Date)

Title:

Telephone Number of authorized representative or licensed agent of insurance carrier:
Please Note: Only insurance carriers and their licensed agents are authorized to issue Form C-105.2. 
Insurance brokers are NOT authorized to issue it.

SAMPLE

William Lawley Jr.

Managing Partner

Insured Name

Holder Name

(716) 849-8618
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Workers' Compensation Law

Section 57. Restriction on issue of permits and the entering into contracts unless compensation is secured.

1. The head of a state or municipal department, board, commission or office authorized or required by law to issue 
any permit for or in connection with any work involving the employment of employees in a hazardous 
employment defined by this chapter, and notwithstanding any general or special statute requiring or authorizing 
the issue of such permits, shall not issue such permit unless proof duly subscribed by an insurance carrier is 
produced in a form satisfactory to the chair, that compensation for all employees has been secured as provided 
by this chapter. Nothing herein, however, shall be construed as creating any liability on the part of such state or 
municipal department, board, commission or office to pay any compensation to any such employee if so 
employed.

2. The head of a state or municipal department, board, commission or office authorized or required by law to enter 
into any contract for or in connection with any work involving the employment of employees in a hazardous 
employment defined by this chapter, notwithstanding any general or special statute requiring or authorizing any 
such contract, shall not enter into any such contract unless proof duly subscribed by an insurance carrier is 
produced in a form satisfactory to the chair, that compensation for all employees has been secured as provided 
by this chapter.

SAMPLE



Prove It to Move It 

Form CE-200 

New York State Workers' Compensation Board  16
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Prove It to Move It 

FORM DB-155 

New York State Workers' Compensation Board  39



Affidavit of Exemption to Show Specific Proof of Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 Coverage for a 1, 2, 3 or 4 Family, Owner-occupied Residence  

**This form cannot be used to waive the workers’ compensation rights or obligations of any party.** 

 
Under penalty of perjury, I certify that I am the owner of the 1, 2, 3 or 4 family, owner-occupied residence 
(including condominiums) listed on the building permit that I am applying for, and I am not required to show 
specific proof of workers’ compensation insurance coverage for such residence because (please check the 
appropriate box): 
  

      I am performing all the work for which the building permit was issued.  
 

      I am not hiring, paying or compensating in any way, the individual(s) that is(are) performing all the work 
for which the building permit was issued or helping me perform such work. 

 

      I have a homeowners insurance policy that is currently in effect and covers the property listed on the 
attached building permit AND am hiring or paying individuals a total of less than 40 hours per week 
(aggregate hours for all paid individuals on the jobsite) for which the building permit was issued. 

 
I also agree to either:  
    ♦ acquire appropriate workers’ compensation coverage and provide appropriate proof of that coverage on 

forms approved by the Chair of the NYS Workers’ Compensation Board to the government entity issuing 
the building permit if I need to hire or pay individuals a total of 40 hours or more per week (aggregate hours 
for all paid individuals on the jobsite) for work indicated on the building permit, or if appropriate, file a CE-
200 exemption form; OR 

 

    ♦ have the general contractor, performing the work on the 1, 2, 3 or 4 family, owner-occupied residence 
(including condominiums) listed on the building permit that I am applying for, provide appropriate proof of 
workers’ compensation coverage or proof of exemption from that coverage on forms approved by the Chair 
of the NYS Workers’ Compensation Board to the government entity issuing the building permit if the 
project takes a total of 40 hours or more per week (aggregate hours for all paid individuals on the jobsite) for 
work indicated on the building permit. 

 
___________________________________    ___________________  
              (Signature of Homeowner)               (Date Signed) 
 
___________________________________   Home Telephone Number ___________________ 
           (Homeowner’s Name Printed) 

 
        
Property Address that requires the building permit: 
 
__________________________________  
  
__________________________________  
      
__________________________________  
    
__________________________________ 
 
Once notarized, this BP-1 form serves as an exemption for both workers’ compensation and disability benefits insurance coverage.  
 
BP-1 (12/08)            NY-WCB 
 



LAWS OF NEW YORK, 1998 
CHAPTER 439 

 
The general municipal law is amended by adding a new section 125 to read as follows: 

 125.  ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS.  NO CITY, TOWN OR VILLAGE SHALL ISSUE A BUILDING PERMIT 
WITHOUT OBTAINING FROM THE PERMIT APPLICANT EITHER: 

1.  PROOF DULY SUBSCRIBED THAT WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS 
COVERAGE ISSUED BY AN INSURANCE CARRIER IN A FORM SATISFACTORY TO THE CHAIR OF THE WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION BOARD AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION FIFTY-SEVEN OF THE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LAW 
IS EFFECTIVE; OR 

2.  AN AFFIDAVIT THAT SUCH PERMIT APPLICANT HAS NOT ENGAGED AN EMPLOYER OR ANY 
EMPLOYEES AS THOSE TERMS ARE DEFINED IN SECTION TWO OF THE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LAW TO 
PERFORM WORK RELATING TO SUCH BUILDING PERMIT. 

 
  
Implementing Section 125 of the General Municipal Law 
 
1. General Contractors -- Business Owners and Certain Homeowners 

For businesses and certain homeowners listed as the general contractors on building permits, proof that they are in 
compliance with Section 57 of the Workers’ Compensation Law (WCL) is ONE of the following forms that indicate that 
they are: 
     ♦  insured (C-105.2 or U-26.3),  
     ♦  self-insured (SI-12), or  
     ♦  are exempt (CE-200),  
under the mandatory coverage provisions of the WCL.  Any residence that is not a 1, 2, 3 or 4 Family, Owner-occupied 
Residence is considered a business (income or potential income property) and must prove compliance by filing one of the 
above forms. 

 
2. Owner-occupied Residences 

For homeowners of a 1, 2, 3 or 4 Family, Owner-occupied Residence, proof of their exemption from the mandatory coverage 
provisions of the Workers’ Compensation Law when applying for a building permit is to file form BP-1.  

 
     ♦ Form BP-1shall be filed if the homeowner of a 1, 2, 3 or 4 Family, Owner-occupied Residence is listed as the general 

contractor on the building permit, and the homeowner: 
 

             ◊ is performing all the work for which the building permit was issued him/herself, 
 

      ◊ is not hiring, paying or compensating in any way, the individual(s) that is(are) performing all the work for 
which the building permit was issued or helping the homeowner perform such work, or 

 
      ◊ has a homeowner’s insurance policy that is currently in effect and covers the property for which the building 

permit was issued AND the homeowner is hiring or paying individuals a total of less than 40 hours per week 
(aggregate hours for all paid individuals on the jobsite) for the work for which the building permit was issued. 

 
     ♦ If the homeowner of a 1, 2, 3 or 4 Family, Owner-occupied Residence is hiring or paying individuals a total of 40 

hours or MORE in any week (aggregate hours for all paid individuals on the jobsite) for the work for which the 
building permit was issued, then the homeowner may not file the “Affidavit of Exemption” form, BP-1(11/04), but shall 
either: 

 
             ◊ acquire appropriate workers’ compensation coverage and provide appropriate proof of that coverage on forms 

approved by the Chair of the NYS Workers’ Compensation Board to the government entity issuing the 
building permit (the C-105.2 or U-26.3 form), OR 

 
             ◊ have the general contractor, (performing the work on the 1, 2, 3 or 4 family, owner-occupied residence 

(including condominiums) listed on the building permit) provide appropriate proof of workers’ compensation 
coverage, or proof of exemption from that coverage on forms approved by the Chair of the NYS Workers’ 
Compensation Board to the government entity issuing the building permit. 

 
BP-1 (12/08) Reverse         www.wcb.state.ny.us 
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POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CG 20 10 11 85 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  1984 Page 1 of 1 oo

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS – (FORM B)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART.

SCHEDULE
Name of Person or Organization:

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations
as applicable to this endorsement.)

WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the
Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your work" for that insured by or for you.



POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
  
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CG 20 26 11 85 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  1984  Page 1 of 1
 

  

ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR 
ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART. 
 

SCHEDULE 
Name of Person or Organization:  

 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations 
as applicable to this endorsement.) 
 
WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule as an insured but only with respect to liability arising out of your operations or premises owned by or 
rented to you.  



 COMMERCIAL AUTO
 CA 99 48 10 01
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CA 99 48 10 01 © ISO Properties, Inc.,  2000  Page 1 of 1 �

 

POLLUTION LIABILITY – BROADENED COVERAGE 
FOR COVERED AUTOS – BUSINESS AUTO, 

MOTOR CARRIER AND TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORMS 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM  

 
With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.  
 
A. Liability Coverage is changed as follows:  
 1. Paragraph a. of the Pollution Exclusion ap-

plies only to liability assumed under a contract 
or agreement.  

 2. Exclusion B.6. Care, Custody Or Control does 
not apply. 

B. Changes In Definitions  
For the purposes of this endorsement, Paragraph 
D. of the Definitions Section is replaced by the 
following:  

 D. "Covered pollution cost or expense" means any 
cost or expense arising out of:  

 1. Any request, demand, order or statutory or 
regulatory requirement; or  

 2. Any claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a gov-
ernmental authority demanding  

that the "insured" or others test for, monitor, 
clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or 
neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess 
the effects of "pollutants".  
"Covered pollution cost or expense" does not 
include any cost or expense arising out of the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, disper-
sal, seepage, migration, release or escape of 
"pollutants":  

 a. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement 
into or onto the covered "auto"; or  

 b. After the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the covered "auto" to the 
place where they are finally delivered, 
disposed of or abandoned by the "in-
sured".  

Paragraphs a. and b. above do not apply to 
"accidents" that occur away from premises 
owned by or rented to an "insured" with re-
spect to "pollutants" not in or upon a cov-
ered "auto" if:  

 (1) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and  

 (2) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by 
such upset, overturn or damage.  



FORM MCS 90 04 00 ENDORSEMENT FOR OMB No. 2126-008 
MOTOR CARRIER POLICIES OF INSURANCE FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY 
UNDER  SECTIONS 29 and 30 OF THE MOTOR CARRIER ACT OF 1980 

Issued to  
 
of  
 
 
Dated at  
This  day of  
 
Amending Policy No.   Effective Date   
 
Telephone Number  Countersigned by  

Authorized Company Representative  
Name of Insurance Company  
 
The policy to which this endorsement is attached provides primary or excess insurance, as indicated by  

"□", for the limits shown:  
 

□ This insurance is primary and the company shall not be liable for amounts in excess of  
$______________ for each accident. 

 

□ This insurance is excess and the company shall not be liable for amounts in excess of  
$______________ for each accident in excess of the underlying limit of $______________ 
for each accident.  

 
Whenever required by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), the company agrees to furnish the FMCSA a 
duplicate of said policy and all its endorsements.  The company also agrees, upon telephone request by an authorized 
representative of the FMCSA, to verify that the policy is in force as of a particular date.  The telephone number to call  
is:  
 
Cancellation of this endorsement may be effected by the company or the insured by giving (1) thirty-five (35) days notice in 
writing to the other party (said 35 days notice to commence from the date the notice is mailed, proof of mailing shall be 
sufficient proof of notice), and (2) if the insured is subject to the FMCSA’s registration requirements under 49 U.S.C. 13901, by 
providing thirty (30) days notice to the FMCSA (said 30 days notice to commence from the date the notice is received by the 
FMCSA at its office in Washington, D.C.). 
 

DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS ENDORSEMENT 
ACCIDENT includes continuous or repeated exposure to conditions which results in bodily injury, property damage, or 
environmental damage which the insured neither expected nor intended.  
 
MOTOR VEHICLE means a land vehicle, machine, truck, tractor, trailer, or semitrailer propelled or drawn by mechanical power 
and used on a highway for transporting property, or any combination thereof.  
 
BODILY INJURY means injury to the body, sickness, or disease to any person, including death resulting from any of these.  
 
PROPERTY DAMAGE means damage to or loss of use of tangible property.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION means restitution for the loss, damage, or destruction of natural resources arising out of 
the accidental discharge, dispersal, release or escape into or upon the land, atmosphere, watercourse, or body of water, of any 
commodity transported by a motor carrier.  This shall include the cost of removal and the cost of necessary measures taken to  
minimize or mitigate damage to human health, the natural environment, fish, shellfish, and wildlife.  
 
PUBLIC LIABILITY means liability for bodily injury, property damage, and environmental restoration.  
 
MCS 90 04 00 Page 1 of 3



 
FORM MCS 90 04 00 ENDORSEMENT FOR OMB No. 2126-008 

MOTOR CARRIER POLICIES OF INSURANCE FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY 
UNDER  SECTIONS 29 and 30 OF THE MOTOR CARRIER ACT OF 1980 

 
The insurance policy to which this endorsement is attached provides automobile liability insurance and is amended to assure 
compliance by the insured, within the limits stated herein, as a motor carrier of property, with Sections 29 and 30 of the Motor 
Carrier Act of 1980 and the rules and regulations of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA).  
 
In consideration of the premium stated in the policy to which this endorsement is attached, the insurer (the company) agrees to 
pay, within the limits of liability described herein, any final judgment recovered against the insured for public liability resulting 
from negligence in the operation, maintenance or use of motor vehicles subject to the financial responsibility requirements of 
Sections 29 and 30 of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980 regardless of whether or not each motor vehicle is specifically described in 
the policy and whether or not such negligence occurs on any route or in any territory authorized to be served by the insured or 
elsewhere.  Such insurance as is afforded, for public liability, does not apply to injury to or death of the insured's employees 
while engaged in the course of their employment, or property transported by the insured, designated as cargo.   
 
It is understood and agreed that no condition, provision, stipulation, or limitation contained in the policy, this endorsement, or 
any other endorsement thereon, or violation thereof, shall relieve the company from liability or from the payment of any final 
judgment, within the limits of liability herein described, irrespective of the financial condition, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
insured.  However, all terms, conditions, and limitations in the policy to which the endorsement is attached shall remain in full 
force and effect as binding between the insured and the company.  The insured agrees to reimburse the company for any 
payment made by the company on account of any accident, claim, or suit involving a breach of the terms of the policy, and for 
any payment that the company would not have been obligated to make under the provisions of the policy except for the 
agreement contained in this endorsement.  
 
It is further understood and agreed that, upon failure of the company to pay any final judgment recovered against the insured 
as provided herein, the judgment creditor may maintain an action in any court of competent jurisdiction against the company to 
compel such payment.  
 
The limits of the company's liability for the amounts prescribed in this endorsement apply separately, to each accident, and any 
payment under the policy because of any one accident shall not operate to reduce the liability of the company for the payment 
of final judgments resulting from any other accident.  
 
THE SCHEDULE OF LIMITS SHOWN ON THE NEXT PAGE DOES NOT PROVIDE COVERAGE.  
 
The limits shown in the schedule are for information purposes only. 
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FORM MCS 90 04 00 ENDORSEMENT FOR OMB No. 2126-008 

MOTOR CARRIER POLICIES OF INSURANCE FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY 
UNDER  SECTIONS 29 and 30 OF THE MOTOR CARRIER ACT OF 1980 

 
 

SCHEDULE OF LIMITS 
Public Liability 

 
 

 
 

Type of Carriage 

 
 

Commodity Transported 

 
Minimum 
Insurance 

 
(1) For-hire (In interstate or foreign 

commerce). 
 
(2) For-hire and Private (In interstate, 

foreign, or intrastate  commerce, 
with a gross vehicle weight rating 
of 10,000 or more pounds). 

 
 
 
 
 
(3) For-hire and Private (In interstate 

or foreign commerce, in any 
quantity; or in intrastate 
commerce, in bulk only; with a 
gross vehicle weight rating of 
10,000 or more pounds). 

 
(4) For-hire and Private (In interstate 

or foreign commerce, with a gross 
vehicle weight rating of less than 
10,000 pounds). 

 

 
Property (nonhazardous).  
 
 
Hazardous substances, as defined in 49 CFR 171.8, 
transported in cargo tanks, portable tanks, or hopper-type 
vehicles with capacities in excess of 3,500 water gallons;  or 
in bulk Division 1.1, 1.2, and 1.3 materials; any quantity of 
Division 2.3, Hazard Zone A, or Division 6.1, Packing Group 
I, Hazard Zone A material; in bulk Division 2.1 or 2.2; or 
highway route controlled quantities of a Class 7 material as 
defined in 49 CFR 173.403.  
 
Oil listed in 49 CFR 172.101; hazardous materials and 
hazardous  substances defined in 49 CFR 171.8 and listed 
in 49 CFR 172.101,  but not mentioned in (2) above or (4) 
below.  
 
 
 
Any quantity of Division 1.1, 1.2, or 1.3 material; any quantity 
of a Division 2.3, Hazard Zone A, or Division 6.1, Packing 
Group I, Hazard Zone A material; or highway route 
controlled quantities of a Class 7 material as defined in 49 
CFR 173.403. 
 

 
$             750,000 

5,000,000

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,000,000

5,000,000
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Page 3 of 3 - Professional Services 

 
 
 
_X_  Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability and New York State 

Disability Benefits Insurances, as required by New York State statute. 
 
 
Certificates of Insurance and renewals, on forms approved by the New York State 
Department of Insurance, must be submitted to ECWA prior to the award of contract.  Each 
insurance carrier issuing a Certificate of Insurance shall be rated by A. M. Best no lower 
than “A-” with a Financial Strength Code (FSC) of at least VII. The  professional service 
provider shall name ECWA, its officers, agents and employees as additional insured on a 
Primary and Non-Contributory Basis, including a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 
(form CG 20 26 11 85 or equivalent), on all applicable liability policies. Any liability 
coverage on a “claims made” basis should be designated as such on the Certificate of 
Insurance. 
 
To avoid confusion with similar insurance company names and to properly identify the 
insurance company, please make sure that the insurer’s National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners (N.A.I.C.) identifying number or A. M. Best identifying number appears 
on the Certificate of Insurance.  
  
Acceptance of a Certificate of Insurance and/or approval by ECWA shall not be construed 
to relieve the professional service provider of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities. 
 
Certificates of Insurance should be e-mailed to AALESSI@ECWA.ORG. or mailed to  Mr. 
Anthony Alessi, ECWA Claims Representative/Risk Manager, Erie County Water 
Authority, 295 Main Street – Room 350, Buffalo, New York 14203-2494, or If you have 
any questions you can contact Mr. Alessi by e-mail or phone (716) 849-8477.   
 
Please refer to the bid and the contract document(s) for additional information regarding 
insurance requirements.  
 

mailto:AALESSI@ECWA.ORG
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